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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009

OR
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 333-90273

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

STATE OF INCORPORATION: IRS EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NO:
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PENNSYLVANIA 23-3017653

Address of principal executive offices:
BLAKELY & DRINKER ST.

DUNMORE, PENNSYLVANIA 18512

TELEPHONE:

570-342-8281

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been

subjected to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or

for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes 0 No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company X
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 0 No x

The number of outstanding shares of Common Stock of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. at April 30, 2009, the latest practicable date, was
2,072,085 shares.
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PART 1 Financial Information

Item 1: Financial Statements

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets:

Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold

Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions

Total cash and cash equivalents
Available-for-sale securities

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Loans and leases, net (allowance for loan losses of $5,097,641 in 2009; $4,745,234

in 2008)

Loans available-for-sale (fair value $681,416 in 2009; $85,312 in 2008)
Bank premises and equipment, net

Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

Other assets

Accrued interest receivable

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale

Total assets

Liabilities:

Deposits:
Interest-bearing
Non-interest-bearing

Total deposits

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity:

Preferred stock authorized 5,000,000 shares with no par value; none issued
Capital stock, no par value (10,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and
outstanding, respectively; 2,076,883 and 2,072,085 in 2009; 2,075,182 and

March 31, 2009
(unaudited)

9,467,907 $

11,268,000
64,825

20,800,732

78,067,789
881,714
4,781,100

420,497,135
675,205
15,871,074
8,886,844
12,708,615
2,378,649
1,236,716

566,785,573

394,857,294
69,296,833

464,154,127
4,427,884
10,741,814
42,000,000

521,323,825

19,455,383

December 31, 2008
(audited)

12,335,905
435,242
12,771,147
83,278,132
909,447
4,781,100
436,207,460
84,000
16,056,362
8,807,784
8,929,917
2,443,141
1,450,507

575,718,997

361,869,281
71,442,651

433,311,932
3,316,710
38,129,704
52,000,000

526,758,346

19,410,306
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2,062,927 shares in 2008)

Treasury stock, at cost (4,798 shares in 2009; 12,255 shares in 2008)
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $

See notes to consolidated financial statements

(132,728)
38,362,084
(12,222,991)
45,461,748

566,785,573  $

(351,665)
38,126,250
(8,224,240)
48,960,651

575,718,997
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Interest income:

Loans and leases:

Taxable

Nontaxable

Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions
Investment securities:

U.S. government agency and corporations

States and political subdivisions (nontaxable)
Other securities

Federal funds sold

Total interest income

Interest expense:

Deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other short-term borrowings and other
Long-term debt

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Other income:

Service charges on deposit accounts

Gain (loss) on sale or disposal of:

Loans

Investment securities

Premises and equipment

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale
Other-than-temporary impairment on securities
Fees and other service charges

Total other income

Other expenses:

Salaries and employee benefits
Premises and equipment
Advertising

Other

Consolidated Statements of Income

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2009

6,560,748
114,774
111

767,371
198,575
185,050

784
7,827,413
2,191,772

8,474
26,140
776,207

3,002,593

4,824,820
425,000

4,399,820

632,420
490,541

(2,246)
10,996

(325,525)
507,176

1,313,362

2,569,693
906,422
142,401

1,043,426

March 31, 2008

6,809,134
78,076
1,106
1,253,181
144,130
375,036
84,169
8,744,832
3,233,736
67,153
64,822
832,285
4,197,996

4,546,836

4,546,836

763,269

91,606
1,134

8,704
430,829
1,295,542
2,417,546
790,640

168,356
1,016,207
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Total other expenses

Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

Per share data:

Net income - basic

Net income - diluted
Dividends

©H L L

See notes to consolidated financial statements

4,661,942
1,051,240
226,182
825,058
0.40

0.40
0.25

@hH PH P

4,392,749
1,449,629
360,682
1,088,947
0.52

0.52
0.25
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Balance, December 31, 2007
Total comprehensive income:
Net income

Change in net unrealized holding
losses on available-for-sale
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effects
Change in cash flow hedge
intrinsic value

Comprehensive income
Issuance of common stock
through Employee Stock
Purchase Plan

Stock-based compensation
expense

Cash dividends declared

Balance, March 31, 2008
(unaudited)

Balance, December 31, 2008
Total comprehensive income:
Net income

Change in net unrealized holding
losses on available-for-sale
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effects
Change in cash flow hedge
intrinsic value

Comprehensive loss

Issuance of common stock
through Employee Stock
Purchase Plan

Dividends reinvested through
Dividend

Reinvestment Plan

Stock-based compensation
expense

Purchase of treasury stock

Cash dividends declared

Balance, March 31, 2009
(unaudited)
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders

Equity

For the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

Capital stock

Shares Amount
2,072,929 $ 19,223,363
2,253 57,891
67,791
2,075,182 $ 19,349,045
2,075,182 $ 19,410,306
1,701 40,569
4,508
2,076,883 $ 19,455,383

Treasury stock

Shares

(12,255)

9,957

(2,500)

(4,798)

$

$

Amount

$

$

(351,665) $

275,442

(56,505)

(132,728) $

Retained
earnings

36,564,157 $

1,088,947

(518,795)

37,134,309 $
38,126,250 $

825,058

(73,067)

(516,157)

38,362,084 $

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

(596,226) $

(59,310)

365,136

(290,400) $

(8,224,240) $

(3,841,964)

(156,787)

(12,222,991) $

Total
55,191,294

1,088,947

(59,310)
365,136
1,394,773
57,891
67,791

(518,795)
56,192,954
48,960,651

825,058

(3,841,964)
(156,787)
(3,173,693)

40,569

202,375
4,508

(56,505)
(516,157)

45,461,748
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See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY DEPOSIT & DISCOUNT BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Provision for loan losses

Deferred income tax (benefit) expense
Stock-based compensation expense

Loss from investment in limited partnership
Proceeds from sale of loans available-for-sale
Originations of loans available-for-sale

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance
Net gain on sale of loans

Net gain on sale of investment securities

Net gain on sale of foreclosed assets held for sale
Loss on disposal of equipment
Other-than-temporary impairment on securities
Change in:

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Held-to-maturity securities:

Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal pay-downs
Available-for-sale securities:

Proceeds from sales

Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal pay-downs
Purchases

Net decrease in FHLB stock

Net decrease (increase) in loans and leases

Acquisition of bank premises and equipment

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets held-for-sale

Net cash provided by (used) in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase in deposits

Net decrease in short-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term debt

Purchase of treasury stock

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Dividends paid, net of dividends reinvested

(unaudited)

Three months ended March 31,

2009

825,058

206,043
425,000
(38,076)
4,508
20,100
38,786,069
(27,746,937)
(79,060)
(490,541)

(10,996)
2,246
325,525

34,581
(960,450)
41,925

11,344,995

27,693

6,283,129
(6,908,445)

4,013,373
(212,285)
356,538

3,560,003

30,842,195
(27,387,890)
(10,000,000)

(56,505)
40,569
(313,782)

$

2008

1,088,947
143,933

159,737
67,791
20,100

33,446,667

(4,096,160)

(76,287)
(91,606)
(1,134)
(8,704)

(290,004)
(950,950)
56,470

29,468,800

39,133

12,881,733
15,104,801
(41,209,106)

(84,900)

(2,324,907)

(651,129)
62,090

(16,182,285)
30,135,115
(29,776,817)

(213,771)

57,891
(518,795)

10
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Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

See notes to consolidated financial statements

(6,875,413)
8,029,585
12,771,147

20,800,732

(316,377)
12,970,138
10,408,816

23,378,954

11
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)

1. Nature of operations and critical accounting policies

Nature of operations

Nature of operations

12
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The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank (the Bank) is a commercial bank chartered in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the Company or collectively, the Company). Having commenced operations
in 1903, the Bank is committed to provide superior customer service, while offering a full range of banking products and financial and
trust services to both our consumer and commercial customers from its main office located in Dunmore and other branches throughout
Lackawanna and Luzerne counties.

The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank (the Bank) is a commercial bank chartered in the Commonwealthief Penns
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Principles of consolidation

Principles of consolidation

16
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The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the
instructions to this Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnote
disclosures required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal recurring adjustments
necessary for a fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for the periods have been included. All significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Bank have beeni@repared
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. For additional information and
disclosures required under GAAP, refer to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Management is responsible for the fairness, integrity and objectivity of the unaudited financial statements included in this report. Management
prepared the unaudited financial statements in accordance with GAAP. In meeting its responsibility for the financial statements, management
depends on the Company s accounting systems and related internal controls. These systems and controls are designed to provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance that the financial records accurately reflect the transactions of the Company, the Company s assets are safeguarded and
that the financial statements present fairly the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

In the opinion of management, the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 and the related consolidated
statements of income for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 and changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the three
months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 present fairly the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. All material
adjustments required for a fair presentation have been made. These adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Company s audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2008, and the notes included therein, included within the Company s Annual Report filed on Form 10-K.

Critical accounting policies

Critical accounting policies 20
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The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect many of
the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change relates to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.
Management believes that the allowance for loan losses at March 31, 2009 is adequate and reasonable. Given the subjective nature of
identifying and valuing loan losses, it is likely that well-informed individuals could make different assumptions, and could, therefore calculate a
materially different allowance value. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, changes in economic
conditions may necessitate revisions in the future. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Company s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize adjustments to the
allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination.

22
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Another material estimate is the calculation of fair values of the Company s investment securities. Except for the Company s investment in
corporate bonds, consisting of preferred term securities, fair values on the other investment securities are determined by prices provided by a
third-party vendor, who is a provider of financial market data, analytics and related services to financial institutions. For the trust preferred term
securities, management was unable to obtain readily attainable and realistic pricing from market traders due to lack of active market participants
and therefore management has determined that the market for these securities continues to be inactive. In order to determine the fair value of
the preferred term securities, management relied on the use of an income valuation approach (present value technique) that maximizes the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs the results of which are more representative of fair value than the
market approach valuation technique used for the other investment securities.

Based on experience, management is aware that estimated fair values of investment securities tend to vary among valuation services.
Accordingly, when selling investment securities, price quotes from more than one source may be obtained. A large majority of the Company s
investment securities are classified as available-for-sale (AFS). AFS securities are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of income tax, reported separately within shareholders equity through accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss).

The fair value of residential mortgage loans, classified as AFS, is obtained from the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) or the
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). Generally, the market to which the Company sells mortgages it originates for sale is restricted and price
quotes from other sources are not typically obtained. On occasion, the Company may transfer loans from the loan and lease portfolio to loans
AFS. Under these circumstances, pricing may be obtained from other entities and the loans are transferred at the lower of cost or market value
and simultaneously sold. For a further discussion on the accounting treatment of AFS loans, see the section entitled Loans available-for-sale,
contained within management s discussion and analysis. As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, loans classified as AFS consisted of
residential mortgages.

2. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common
stock outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as basic EPS but reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
stock options to issue additional common stock were exercised, which would then result in additional stock outstanding to share in or dilute the
earnings of the Company. The Company maintains two share-based compensation plans that may generate additional potential dilutive common
shares. Generally, dilution would occur if Company-issued stock options were exercised and converted into common stock. There were no
potentially dilutive shares outstanding at March 31, 2009 or 2008.

In the computation of diluted EPS, the Company uses the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive effect of its granted but unexercised
stock options. Under the treasury stock method, the assumed proceeds received from shares issued, in a hypothetical stock option exercise, are
assumed to be used to purchase treasury stock. For a further discussion on the Company s stock option plans, see Note No. 3, Stock plans,
below.

The following table illustrates the data used in computing basic EPS and a reconciliation to derive at the components of diluted EPS for the
periods indicated:

23
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Three months ended March 31,

Net income available to common shareholders
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic EPS

Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders
Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Potentially dilutive common shares

Weighted-average common shares and dilutive potential shares
Diluted EPS

2009

825,058
2,065,715
0.40

825,058
2,065,715

2,065,715
0.40

$

2008

1,088,947
2,075,033
0.52

1,088,947
2,075,033

2,075,033
0.52

24
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3. Stock plans

The Company has two stock-based compensation plans (the stock option plans) and applies the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
compensation provided under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123R, Share Based Payment. SFAS 123R requires that
the cost of share-based payment transactions (including those with employees and non-employees) be recognized in the financial statements.

Under the stock option plans, options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company s stock on the date of grant.
The awards vest based on six months of continuous service from the date of grant and have 10-year contractual terms. Stock-based
compensation expense is recognized over the six-month vesting period. Generally, all shares that are granted become fully vested. Stock-based
compensation is recorded in the consolidated income statement as a component of salaries and employee benefits.

The Company established the 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan and has reserved 55,000 shares of its un-issued capital stock for
issuance under the plan. No stock options were awarded during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. As of March 31, 2009, there
were 27,400 unexercised stock options outstanding under this plan.

The Company also established the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and has reserved 55,000 shares of its un-issued capital stock for issuance under the
plan. There were no options awarded during the three months ended March 31, 2009. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, 2,000
stock options were issued under this plan at a weighted-average grant-date fair value of $4.85 per share. The Company uses the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Valuation Model to determine the fair value of awarded options on the date of grant. The model considers expected volatility,
expected dividends, risk-free interest rate and the expected term. As of March 31, 2009, there were 12,390 unexercised stock options
outstanding under this plan.

The following tables illustrate stock-based compensation expense recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 and the
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense as of March 31, 2009 and 2008. There was no unrecognized stock-based compensation
expense as of December 31, 2008:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008

Stock-based compensation expense:

Director s Plan $ $ 48,471
Incentive Plan 16,380
Total stock-based compensation expense $ $ 64,851

As of:
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense:

Director s Plan $ $ 42,079
Incentive Plan 19,182

25
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Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense $ $ 61,261

In addition to the two stock option plans, the Company established the 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) and reserved 110,000
shares of its un-issued capital stock for issuance under the plan. The plan was designed to promote broad-based employee ownership of the
Company s stock. Under the ESPP, employees may elect to purchase the Company s capital stock at a discounted price based on the fair market
value of the Company s capital stock on either the commencement date or termination date. At March 31, 2009, 12,271 shares have been issued
under the ESPP. The Company recognizes compensation expense on its ESPP on the date the shares are purchased. For the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008, compensation expense related to the ESPP approximated $5,000 and $3,000, respectively, and is included as
components of salaries and employee benefits in the consolidated statements of income.

26
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4. Derivative instruments

As part of the Company s overall interest rate risk management strategy, the Company has adopted a policy whereby it may periodically use
derivative instruments to minimize significant fluctuations in earnings caused by interest rate volatility. This interest rate risk management
strategy entails the use of interest rate floors, caps and swaps. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company entered into a three-year interest
rate floor derivative agreement on $20,000,000 notional value of its prime-based loan portfolio. The transaction required the payment of a
premium by the Company to the seller for the right to receive payments in the event national prime drops below a pre-determined level (strike
rate), essentially converting floating rate loans to fixed rate loans when prime drops below the contractual strike rate. When purchased, the
Company recorded an asset representing the fair value of the hedge at the time of purchase. The Company has designated this agreement as a
cash flow hedge pursuant to SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, the change in the fair
value of the instrument related to the hedge s intrinsic value, or approximately ($157,000) and $365,000 for the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively, is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) (OCI) in the consolidated statement of changes
in shareholders equity and the portion of the change in fair value related to the time value expiration, or approximately $1,000 and $23,000 for
the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, is recorded in the consolidated statements of income as a reduction of interest
income. No gain or loss has been recognized in earnings due to hedge ineffectiveness as of March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, the
Company does not expect to reclassify any amount from OCI to earnings over the next three quarters and no hedge has been discontinued. Also,
as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the fair value of the derivative contract approximated $478,000 and $636,000, respectively, and is
recorded as a component of other assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The following table illustrates the present value, intrinsic value and
time value components of the Company s derivative contract and the financial statement impact of the change in the fair value for the periods
indicated:

Three months ended or as of March 31,

Present Intrinsic Time
value value value
Balance Balance Income
sheet sheet statement
Other assets OCI Interest income
2009
Beginning Balance $ 635,839 $ 606,492
Change in fair value (158,200) (156,787) (1,413)
Balance March 31, 2009 $ 477,639 $ 449,705
2008
Beginning Balance $ 440,593 $ 385,741
Change in fair value 341,573 365,136 (23,563)
Balance March 31, 2008 $ 782,166 $ 750,877

As a result of the low national prime rate relative to the contract s strike rate, the Company earned $225,000 and $77,000 for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and is included as a component of interest income from loans in the consolidated income
statements. The contract is scheduled to expire in the fourth quarter of 2009.

The use of derivative instruments exposes the Company to credit risk in the event of non-performance by the agreement s counterparty to the
derivative instrument. In the event of default by the counterparty, the Company would be subject to an economic loss that corresponds to the
cost to replace the agreement. The Company controls the credit risk associated with the derivative instrument by engaging counterparties with
high credit ratings, establishing counterparty exposure limits and monitoring procedures.
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5. Fair value measurements

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not
change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS 157 establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of
the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy

10
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prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels as follows. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market
corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based on our own assumptions
to measure assets and liabilities at fair value. Level 3 pricing for securities may also include unobservable inputs based upon broker-traded
transactions. A financial asset or liability s classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement. The adoption of this statement had no effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

In February 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement
No. 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 for non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. In October 2008, FASB
issued FSP 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for that Asset is not Active, which clarifies the application
of FAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial
asset when the market for that financial asset is not active.

The following table illustrates the financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis segregated by hierarchy fair value levels
(dollars in thousands):

Fair value measurements at March 31, 2009:

Total carrying Quoted prices Significant other Significant
value at in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
March 31, 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 78,068 $ 387 $ 73,769 $ 3,912
Loans available-for-sale 675 675
Derivative instrument 478 478
Total $ 79,221  $ 387 $ 74,922 $ 3,912

Equity securities in the available-for-sale securities portfolio are measured at fair value using quoted market prices for identical assets and are
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Other than the Company s investment in corporate bonds, all other debt securities in the
available-for-sale securities portfolio are measured at fair value using prices provided by a third-party vendor, who is a provider of financial

market data, analytics and related services to financial institutions. The Company s preferred term securities, classified under corporate bonds,
include both observable and unobservable inputs to determine fair value as described above and, therefore, are considered Level 3 inputs. Once

the market activity, including new issues, begins to occur, and the unobservable subjective inputs are replaced by market activity, management

may transfer these securities out of Level 3 into a Level 2 classification. For a further discussion on the fair value determination of the

Company s preferred term securities, see the discussion in Investments under the caption Comparison of financial condition at March 31, 2009
and December 31, 2008 of Item 2, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, incorporated
herein.

Loans available-for-sale are measured at fair value from quotes received through secondary market sources, i.e., FNMA or FHLB, who provide
pricing for similar assets with similar terms in actively traded markets. The derivative instrument, included in other assets, is measured at fair
value from pricing provided by a third party who considers observable interest rates, forward yield curves at commonly quoted intervals and
volatility.
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The following table illustrates the changes in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the periods indicated
(dollars in thousands):

As of and for the As of and for the
three months ended three months ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Assets:
Balance at beginning of period $ 10,260 $ 16,335
Realized / unrealized gains (losses):
in earnings (326)
in comprehensive income (6,040) (1,341)
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, amortization and accretion, net 18 4,549
Transfers into (out of) Level 3
Balance at end of period $ 3912 § 19,543

The following table illustrates the financial instruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis segregated by hierarchy fair value levels
(dollars in thousands):

Fair value measurements at March 31, 2009 using:

Total carrying Quoted prices Significant other Significant
value at in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
March 31, 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Impaired loans $ 1,974 $ 11 $ 1,108 $ 855

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent are written down to fair value through the establishment of specific reserves. Techniques used to
value the collateral that secures the impaired loan include: quoted market prices for identical assets classified as Level 1 inputs; observable
inputs, employed by certified appraisers for similar assets classified as Level 2 inputs. In cases where valuation techniques included inputs that
are unobservable or are based on estimates and assumptions developed by management, with significant adjustments from the best information
available under each circumstance, the asset valuation is classified as Level 3 inputs.

6. New Accounting Pronouncements

On April 9, 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued three amendments to the fair value measurement, disclosure and
other-than-temporary impairment standards as follows:

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have
Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (FSP 157-4). FSP 157-4 provides additional guidance for estimating
fair value in accordance with FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, when the volume and level of activity for the asset or
liability have significantly decreased. This FSP also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.
This FSP emphasizes that even if there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability and regardless
of the valuation technique(s) used, the objective of a fair value measurement remains the same. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants
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at the measurement date under current market conditions. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FSP 157-4 will
have on its consolidated financial statements;

FSP No. FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary-Impairments (FSP 115-2 and 124-2). FSP 115-2
and 124-2 amends the other-than-temporary-impairment (OTTI) guidance in U.S. GAAP for debt securities to make the guidance more
operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of OTTI on debt and equity securities in the financial statements. This FSP does not
amend existing recognition and measurement guidance related to OTTI impairments of equity securities. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact that the adoption of FSP 115-2 and 124-2 will have on its consolidated financial statements;
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FSP No. 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, (FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1). FSP 107-1 and APB
28-1 amends FASB Statement No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, to require disclosures about fair value of
financial instruments for interim reporting periods of publicly traded companies as well as in annual financial statements. This FSP also amends
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial Reporting, to require those disclosures in summarized financial information at
interim reporting periods. FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company s consolidated financial
statements.

The above three FSPs shall be effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. Earlier adoption is permitted for
periods ending after March 15, 2009. If an entity early adopts any of these FSPs, it must also early adopt the others. The Company has not early
adopted any one of these FSPs.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSP No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets, (FSP 142-3). FSP 142-3
amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The intent of FSP 142-3 is to improve the consistency
between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset and the period of expected cash flows, particularly as used to measure fair value in
business combinations. FSP 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and is immaterial as it relates to the
Company s consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities. It requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts of gains and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features
in derivative agreements. The adoption of SFAS No. 161 had no impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Item 2: Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is management s discussion and analysis of the significant changes in the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of
March 31, 2009 compared to December 31, 2008 and the results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Current
performance may not be indicative of future results. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company s 2008 Annual Report filed
on Form 10-K.

Forward-looking statements

This Interim Report on Form 10-Q contains a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of

1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. These

statements may be identified by the use of the words anticipate, believe, could, estimate, expect, intend, may, outlook, plan, po
project, should, will, would and similar terms and phrases, including references to assumptions. Forward-looking statements include risks and

uncertainties.
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Forward-looking statements are based on various assumptions and analyses made by us in light of management s experience and its perception of
historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors management believes are appropriate under the
circumstances. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors (many of

which are beyond our control) that could cause actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by such

forward-looking statements. These factors include, without limitation, the following:

. the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances beyond our control;
. volatilities in the securities market;
. deteriorating economic conditions;
. effects of deterioration of economic conditions on customers, specifically the effect on loan customers ability to repay their loans;
. there may be increases in competitive pressure among financial institutions or from non-financial institutions;
13
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. changes in the interest rate environment may reduce interest margins;

. changes in deposit flows, loan demand or real estate and investment securities values may adversely affect our business;

. changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines may cause our financial condition to be perceived differently;

. general economic conditions, either nationally or locally in some or all areas in which we do business, or conditions in the securities

markets or the banking industry may be less favorable than we currently anticipate;

. legislative or regulatory changes may adversely affect our business;

. technological changes may be more rapid, difficult or expensive than we anticipate;

. success or consummation of new business initiatives may be more difficult or expensive than we anticipate;
. acts of war or terrorism; and

. natural disaster.

Management cautions readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect analyses only as of the date of this
document. We have no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.

Readers should review the risk factors described in other documents that we file or furnish, from time to time, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including Annual Reports to Shareholders, Annual Reports filed on Form 10-K and other current reports filed or furnished on
Form 8-K.

General
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The Company s principal revenues are derived from interest, dividends and fees earned on its interest-earning assets, which are comprised of
loans, securities and other short-term investments. The Company s principal expenses consist of interest paid on its interest-bearing liabilities,
which are comprised of deposits, short- and long-term borrowings and operating and general expenses. The Company s profitability depends
primarily on its net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between interest income and interest expense. Interest income is
generated from yields on interest-earning assets which consist principally of loans and investment securities. Interest expense is incurred from
rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, which consist of deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is dependent upon the interest-rate
spread (i.e., the difference between the yields earned on its interest-earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities) and the
relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rate spread is significantly impacted by: changes in
interest rates and market yield curves and their related impact on cash flows; the composition and characteristics of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities; differences in the maturity and re-pricing characteristics of assets compared to the maturity and re-pricing
characteristics of the liabilities that fund them and by the competition in our marketplace.

The Company s profitability is also affected by the level of its non-interest income and expenses, provision for loan losses and provision for
income taxes. Non-interest income consists of service charges on the Bank s loan and deposit products, trust and asset management service fees,
increases in the cash surrender value of the bank owned life insurance (BOLI), net gains or losses from sales of loans and securities AFS, sales

of other real estate (ORE) properties and from Other-than-temporary-impairment (OTTI) charges on investment securities. Non-interest expense
consists of compensation and related employee benefit expenses, occupancy, equipment, data processing, advertising, marketing, professional
fees, insurance and other operating overhead.

The Company s profitability is significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions, changes in market interest rates,
government policies and actions of regulatory authorities. The Company s loan portfolio is comprised principally of commercial and commercial
real estate loans. The properties underlying the Company s mortgages are concentrated in Northeastern Pennsylvania. Credit risk, which
represents the possibility of the Company not recovering amounts due from its borrowers, is significantly related to local economic conditions in
the areas the properties are
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located as well as the Company s underwriting standards. Economic conditions affect the market value of the underlying collateral as well as the
levels of adequate cash flow and revenue generation from income-producing commercial properties.

Comparison of the results of operations

Three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

Overview

Net income for the first quarter of 2009 was $825,000 compared to $1,089,000 recorded in the same quarter of 2008. Diluted earnings per share
were $0.40 and $0.52 for each of the respective quarters. The decrease in net income was principally the result of a $425,000 provision for loan
loss recorded in the current year s quarter compared to none during the first quarter of 2008, a non-cash OTTI charge of $325,000 related to the
Company s investment portfolio that did not occur in the first quarter of 2008 and a $269,000 increase in non-interest operating expenses during
the first three months of 2009 compared to the first three months of 2008. These items were partially offset by an increase in net interest income
of $278,000, or a 6% improvement and increased other non-interest income of $343,000 from mortgage banking activities. For the three months
ended March 31, 2009 net income, excluding the OTTI charge would have been $1,040,000, or $0.50 per share. The following table reconciles
net income as reported to pro forma net operating income for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2009 2008
Amount Per share Amount Per share
Net income, as reported $ 825,058 $ 0.40 $ 1,088,947 $ 0.52
Other-than-temporary impairment 325,525 0.15
Tax effect (110,679) (0.05)
Net operating earnings $ 1,039,904 $ 0.50 $ 1,088,947 $ 0.52

Return on average assets (ROA) and return on average shareholders equity (ROE) were 0.58% and 7.02%, respectively, for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 compared to 0.74% and 7.80% for the same period in 2008. The lower net income in the current year quarter was the
primary cause of the decline in both ROA and ROE.

Net interest income and interest sensitive assets / liabilities

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, net interest income increased $278,000, or 6%, to $4,825,000 compared to $4,547,000 recorded
during the three months ended March 31, 2008. The tax-equivalent net interest margin improved to 3.73% for the three months ended March 31,
2009 from 3.37% for the three months ended March 31, 2008. The net interest rate spread increased to 3.28% for the three months ended

March 31, 2009 from 2.76% for the three months ended March 31, 2008. The principal cause of the improvements in net interest income,
margin and spread stems from lower rates paid on lower average balances of interest-bearing liabilities partially offset by lower yields earned on
interest-earning assets.
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Interest income declined $917,000, or 10%, to $7,827,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009, from $8,744,000 for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 primarily due to a 42 basis point decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets to 5.97% for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 from 6.39% for the three months ended March 31, 2008. The decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets was
from the sustaining effect of operating in the lower interest rate environment which had the most significant impact in the loan and investment
portfolios whose yields declined 56 basis points and 57 basis points, respectively in the current year s quarter compared to the same quarter of
2008. The net decline in average balances of interest-earning assets had a relatively minor impact compared to the effect the interest rate
environment had on the Company s overall interest income performance.

Interest expense decreased $1,195,000, or 28%, to $3,003,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 from $4,198,000 for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 largely from a 52 basis point decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities to 2.76% from 3.28% for the
comparative periods. The rates paid on the Company s interest-bearing deposits declined by more than 100 basis points and was the primary
cause of the $1,042,000 decrease. The decrease in the average-balances of total borrowings also contributed to the $153,000 decline in interest
expense.

The current interest rate environment has not changed drastically since year-end 2008 however it is much different than a year ago. The interest
rate environment was considerably lower during the first quarter of 2009 compared to 2008, albeit the
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treasury yield curve is somewhat steeper today. The lower rates have caused assets to price and re-price at significantly lower levels thereby
pressuring earning-yields downward. Increased prepayment activity in asset portfolios, thereby shortening the duration of interest-earning assets
as well as loan refinancing all contribute to lower portfolio yields. However, the steepness of the curve has enabled the Company to help
mitigate the lower yields earned from its asset portfolios. To manage the interest rate margin to acceptable levels, the Company s Asset Liability
Management (ALM) team meets regularly to discuss interest rate risk and when deemed necessary adjusts interest rates on deposits and
repurchase agreements and also uses lower costing wholesale funding sources. The actions of the ALM team have helped minimize the effect
rate changes have had on interest income so that net interest income is not disproportionately impacted during this lower yield environment.
During the first quarter of 2009, the Company also sold $10.8 million of lower yielding mortgage loans and used the proceeds to pay off a
Federal Home Loan (FHLB) advance that was scheduled to mature in June of this year. The Company s proactive attention to interest rate risk
should continue to help contain the Company s net interest income at acceptable levels.

The following table sets forth a comparison of average balance sheet amounts and their corresponding fully tax-equivalent (FTE) interest income
and expense and annualized tax-equivalent yield and cost for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands):

Three months ended:

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Average Yield / Average Yield /

balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Loans and leases $ 438,804 $ 6,735 6.22% $ 411,093 $ 6,928 6.78%
Investments 102,485 1,258 4.98 134,492 1,856 5.55
Federal funds sold 1,446 1 0.22 12,175 84 2.78
Interest-bearing deposits 119 0.38 152 1 2.93
Total interest-earning assets 542,854 7,994 5.97 557,912 8,869 6.39
Non-interest-earning assets 29,442 34,170
Total Assets $ 572,296 $ 592,082
Liabilities and shareholders
equity
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Other interest-bearing deposits $ 207,234 569 1.11% $ 191,295 1,094 2.30%
Certificates of deposit 173,274 1,623 3.80 189,601 2,140 4.54
Borrowed funds 62,305 803 5.22 68,697 897 5.25
Repurchase agreements 10,362 8 0.33 15,372 67 1.76
Total interest-bearing liabilities 453,175 3,003 2.69 464,965 4,198 3.63
Non-interest-bearing deposits 68,083 66,504
Other non-interest-bearing
liabilities 3,367 4,457
Shareholders equity 47,671 56,156
Total liabilities and shareholders
equity $ 572,296 $ 592,082
Net interest income / interest rate
spread $ 4,991 3.28% $ 4,671 2.76%
Net interest margin 3.73% 3.37%

In the table above, interest income was adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis to recognize the income from the various tax-exempt assets as if the
interest was fully taxable. This treatment allows a uniform comparison among the yields on interest-earning assets. The calculations were
computed on a fully tax-equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%. Net interest spread represents the difference between the
yield on interest-earning assets and the rate on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest margin represents the ratio of net interest income to total
average interest-earning assets.
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Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses represents the necessary amount to charge against current earnings, the purpose of which is to increase the
allowance for loan losses to a level that represents management s best estimate of known and inherent losses in the Company s loan portfolio.
Loans and leases determined to be uncollectible are charged-off against the allowance for loan losses. The required amount of the provision for
loan losses, based upon the adequate level of the allowance for loan losses, is subject to ongoing analysis of the loan portfolio. The Company s
Special Asset Committee meets periodically to review problem loans and leases. The committee is comprised of management, including the
chief risk officer, loan workout officers and collection personnel. The committee reports quarterly to the Credit Administration Committee of
the Board of Directors.
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Management continuously reviews the risks inherent in the loan and lease portfolio. Specific factors used to evaluate the adequacy of the loan
loss provision during the formal process include:

. specific loans that could have loss potential;

. levels of and trends in delinquencies and non-accrual loans;
. levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries;

. trends in volume and terms of loans;

. changes in risk selection and underwriting standards;

. changes in lending policies, procedures and practices;

. experience, ability and depth of lending management;

. national and local economic trends and conditions; and

. changes in credit concentrations.

Provisions for loan losses of $425,000 were recorded during the quarter ended March 31, 2009. No provisions for loan losses were necessary

during the first quarter of 2008. During the first quarter of 2009, the provision was recorded to fund growth in commercial and commercial real
estate loans and the down grading of some internally classified loans. These two factors contributed to a higher calculated allowance for loan

loss requirement. The allowance for loan losses was $5,097,000 at March 31, 2009 compared to $4,745,000 at December 31, 2008. For a

further discussion the allowance for loan losses, see Allowance for loan losses under the caption Comparison of financial condition at March 31,
2009 and December 31, 2008 , below.

Other income

In the first quarter of 2009, other (non-interest) income increased modestly, $18,000 or 1%, to $1,313,000 from $1,295,000 recorded in the first
quarter of 2008. During the current year quarter, the Company sold $38,296,000 of residential mortgage loans at a gain of $491,000. Included
in these sales were $10,838,000 of loans transferred from the loan and lease portfolio to loans AFS and simultaneously sold. Partially offsetting
this gain was a non-cash OTTI charge of $325,000 from the investment portfolio. The OTTI charge is related to the Company s investment in a
pooled preferred term security. The carrying value of this security was further written down to its fair market value as of March 31, 2009 as
management has deemed the additional impairment to be other-than-temporary. There was no similar OTTI charge during the first quarter of
2008. Service charges from deposit accounts declined $131,000, or 17%, due to a lower volume of overdraft transactions. The improvement in
all other non-interest income was from increases in loan fees and financial services revenue.

Other operating expenses
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For the quarter ended March 31, 2009, other (non-interest) expenses increased $269,000, or 6%, compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2008.
Salary and benefits increased due to: a full quarter of operations of the Company s new West Scranton branch that was not operational during the
first quarter of 2008; a Company s executive officer was re-employed in the middle of the 2008 quarter compared to a full quarter impact in the
current year; higher commissions earned on production by our mortgage lenders and financial services staff; increased health care and partially
offset by lower stock-based compensation. The increase in premises and equipment is from added depreciation expense for the new West
Scranton branch expansion projected and increased equipment maintenance in information technology. The increase in the other category of
non-interest expense includes a $62,000 increase in FDIC insurance premiums in the current year compared to the three months ended

March 31, 2008; increased ORE expenses related to the payment of delinquent taxes; partially offset by lower branch related costs.

In late February 2009, the FDIC voted to impose a special assessment of 20 basis points on all FDIC-insured banks, on June 30, 2009, to be
collected on September 30, 2009. The Company anticipates that the special assessment will range from 6 to 20 basis points and could adversely
affect earnings by as much as $900,000 based on our current federally-insured deposit amounts. Furthermore, the FDIC has the authority, after
June 30, 2009, to impose an additional 10 basis point emergency special assessment on all FDIC-insured banks if it estimates the reserve ratio of
the Deposit Insurance Fund will fall to a level that it believes would adversely affect public confidence or to a level which would be close to zero
or negative at the end of a calendar quarter. At this time we cannot estimate the probability of this event; however, any additional FDIC
assessment and/or premium would be adverse to our 2009 earnings.

Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2009 was lower compared to the same periods in 2008 primarily from
lower pretax income.
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Comparison of financial condition at

March 31. 2009 and December 31, 2008

Overview

Consolidated assets declined $8,933,000, or 2%, during the three months ended March 31, 2009. The decline was caused by a $37,388,000, or
41%, reduction in total borrowings, a decline of $3,499,000 or 7%, in shareholders equity, partially offset by a $30,842,000, or 7%, increase in
total deposits. The decline in shareholders equity was caused by increased levels of unrealized losses in the securities AFS portfolio. The
reduction in borrowings was from implementing a de-leveraging strategy that used the proceeds from the sale of residential mortgage loans to
reduce a FHLB advance that was scheduled to mature during the second quarter of 2009. The increase in deposits was used to reduce overnight
funding and fund commercial loan growth.

Investment securities

At the time of purchase, management classifies investment securities into one of three categories: trading, AFS or held-to- maturity (HTM). To
date, management has not purchased any securities for trading purposes. Most of the securities purchased are classified as AFS even though

there is no immediate intent to sell them. The AFS designation affords management the flexibility to sell securities and position the balance

sheet in response to capital levels, liquidity needs or changes in market conditions. Securities AFS are carried at net fair value in the

consolidated balance sheet with an adjustment to shareholders equity, net of tax, presented under the caption Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss). Securities designated as HTM are carried at amortized cost and represent debt securities that the Company has the ability and
intent to hold until maturity.

As of March 31, 2009, the carrying value of investment securities totaled $78,950,000, or 14% of total assets, compared to $84,188,000, or 15%
of total assets, at December 31, 2008. At March 31, 2009, approximately 15% of the carrying value of the investment portfolio was comprised
of mortgage-backed securities that amortize and provide monthly cash flow. Agency, municipal and corporate bonds comprised 54%, 26% and
5%, respectively, of the investment portfolio at March 31, 2009.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, total investments decreased $5,238,000, net of a $5,821,000 decline in the market value of AFS
investments. The amortized cost and fair market value of investment securities is comprised of HTM and AFS securities with carrying values of
$882,000 and $78,068,000, respectively. As of March 31, 2009, the AFS debt securities were recorded with a net unrealized loss in the amount
of $19,266,000 and equity securities were recorded with an unrealized gain of $65,000.

A comparison of investment securities at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Amount % Amount %
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$

42,213
11,789
20,649
3912
387
78,950

535 $
14.9
26.1
5.0
0.5

100.0 $

18

43,507
12,439
17,553
10,260

428
84,187

51.6
14.8
20.9
12.2
0.5
100.0
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The amortized cost and fair value of investments at March 31, 2009 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Gross unrealized Gross unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value

Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 882 $ 51 $ $ 933
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies and corporations $ 44244 $ 77 $ 2,108 $ 42,213
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 21,207 99 657 20,649
Corporate bonds 21,107 17,195 3,912
Mortgage-backed securities 10,389 518 10,907
Total debt securities 96,947 694 19,960 77,681
Equity securities 322 90 25 387
Total available-for-sale $ 97,269 $ 784 $ 19,985 § 78,068

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at March 31, 2009 by contractual maturity are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Market
cost value

Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 882 $ 933
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
Due in one year or less $ $
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years 8,133 8,201
Due after ten years 78,425 58,573
Total debt securities 86,558 66,774
Mortgage-backed securities 10,389 10,907
Total available-for-sale debt securities $ 96,947 $ 77,681

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers and borrowers may have the right to call or repay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalty. Federal agency and municipal securities are included based on their original stated maturity.
Mortgage-backed securities, which are based on weighted-average lives and subject to monthly principal pay-downs, are listed in total.

Quarterly, management performs a review of the investment portfolio to determine the cause of declines in the fair value of each security. The
Company uses inputs provided by independent third parties to determine the fair value of its investment securities portfolio. Inputs provided by
the third party are reviewed and corroborated by management. Evaluations of the causes of the unrealized losses are performed to determine
whether impairment, if any, is temporary or other-than-temporary. Considerations such as the Company s intent and ability to hold the securities
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to maturity, recoverability of the invested amounts over the intended holding period, the length of time and the severity in pricing decline below
cost, the interest rate environment, receipts of amounts contractually due and whether or not there is an active market for the security, for
example are applied, along with the financial condition of the issuer for management to make a realistic judgment of the

19

46



Edgar Filing: FIDELITY D & D BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

probability that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts (principal and interest) due in determining whether a security is
other-than-temporarily impaired. If a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the amortized cost of the security is reduced by the
impairment amount and a corresponding charge to earnings is recognized. If at the time of sale, call or maturity the proceeds exceed the
security s amortized cost, the impairment charge may be fully or partially recovered.

During 2008 and today, uncertainty in the financial markets increased the volatility in fair value estimates for the securities in our investment
portfolio. Compared to year-end 2008, the fair values of securities have declined. Management believes these changes were due mainly to
liquidity problems in the financial markets, not deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuers.

At March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the securities with the most significant reductions in fair value and associated estimated unrealized
losses were in the Company s corporate bond portfolio consisting of collateralized debt obligation (CDO) securities that are backed by pooled
trust preferred term securities (preferred term securities) issued by banks, thrifts and insurance companies.

Except for preferred term securities, fair values on the other investment securities are determined by prices provided by a third-party vendor,
who is a provider of financial market data, analytics and related services to financial institutions. For the trust preferred term securities portfolio,
management was unable to obtain readily attainable and realistic pricing from market traders due to lack of active market participants and
therefore management has determined that the market for these securities is continues to be inactive.

The Company owns 13 issues of preferred term securities. The market for these securities at March 31, 2009 was not active and markets for
similar securities were also not active. The inactivity was evidenced first by a significant widening of the bid-ask spread in the brokered markets
in which preferred term securities trade and then by a significant decrease in the volume of trades relative to historical levels. The new issue
market is also inactive as no new preferred term securities have been issued since 2007. There are currently very few market participants who
are willing and or able to transact for these securities. Given conditions in the debt markets today and the absence of observable transactions in
the secondary and new issue markets, we determined:

. The few observable transactions and market quotations that were available were not reliable for purposes of
determining fair value at March 31, 2009,

. An income valuation approach (present value technique) that maximizes the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs will be equally or more representative of fair value than the
market approach valuation technique used at prior measurement dates and

. Our preferred term securities will be classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because we
determined that significant adjustments are required to determine fair value at the measurement date. Our preferred
term securities valuations were prepared by an independent third party. Their approach to determining fair value
involved the following:
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. Data about the issue structure as defined in the indenture and the underlying collateral were collected.

. The credit quality of the collateral is estimated using average probability of default values for each issuer
(adjusted for rating levels and stressed to reflect the current environment),

. The default probabilities also considered the potential for correlation among issuers within the same industry
(e.g. banks with other banks),

. The loss given default was assumed to be 100%,

. The cash flows were forecast for the underlying collateral and applied to each CDO tranche to determine the
resulting distribution among the securities,

. The expected cash flows were discounted to calculate the present value of the security,

. The effective discount rates on an overall basis range from 6.81% to 88.01% and are highly dependent upon
the credit quality of the collateral, the relative position of the tranche in the capital structure of the CDO and the
prepayment assumptions, and

. The calculations were modeled in several thousand scenarios using a Monte Carlo engine to establish a
distribution of intrinsic values and the average was used for valuation purposes.

20

48



Edgar Filing: FIDELITY D & D BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Based on the technique described, the Company determined that as of March 31, 2009, the fair value of one preferred term security had declined
$326,000 below its amortized cost and has deemed this security to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Accordingly, this amount has been
recorded as an impairment charge and is included as a component of other income in the consolidated income statements for the three months
ended March 31, 2009. Excluding, the impairment, the market value of the Company s investment in preferred term securities has declined by
$6,040,000 since December 31, 2008. The Company closely monitors the preferred term securities market and performs collateral sufficiency
and cash flow analyses on at least a quarterly basis. Future analyses could yield results that may indicate further impairment has occurred and
therefore require additional write-downs and corresponding other-than-temporary charges to current earnings. There was no
other-than-temporary impairment charges recorded during the first three months of 2008.

At March 31, 2009, the AFS debt securities portfolio was carried at a net unrealized loss of $19,266,000 compared to a net unrealized loss of
$13,486,000 at December 31, 2008. Management believes the cause of the unrealized losses is related to changes in interest rates or the limited
trading activity due to recent debt market illiquid conditions and is not directly or fully related to credit quality, which is consistent with its past
experience. In addition, the Company has the ability and intent to hold its investments for a period of time sufficient for the fair value of the
securities to recover, which may be at maturity.

Loans available-for-sale (AFS)

Generally, upon origination, certain residential mortgages are classified as AFS. In the event of market rate increases, fixed-rate loans and loans
not immediately scheduled to re-price would no longer produce yields consistent with the current market. In a declining interest rate
environment, the Company would be exposed to prepayment risk and, as rates decrease, interest income could be negatively affected.
Consideration is given to the Company s current liquidity position and projected future liquidity needs. To better manage prepayment and
interest rate risk, loans that meet these conditions may be classified as AFS. The carrying value of loans AFS is at the lower of cost or estimated
fair value. If the fair values of these loans fall below their original cost, the difference is written down and charged to current earnings.
Subsequent appreciation in the portfolio is credited to current earnings but only to the extent of previous write-downs.

Loans AFS at March 31, 2009 amounted to $675,000 with a corresponding fair value of $681,000, compared to $84,000 and $85,000,
respectively, at December 31, 2008. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, residential mortgage loans with principal balances of
$38,296,000 were sold into the secondary market with net gains of approximately $491,000 recognized. Included in the sale was $10,838,000 of
residential loans transferred from the loan and lease portfolio.

Loans and leases

The Company originates commercial and industrial (commercial) and commercial real estate (CRE) loans, residential mortgages, consumer,
home equity and construction loans. The relative volume of originations is dependent upon customer demand, current interest rates and the
perception and duration of future interest levels. The broad spectrum of products provides diversification that helps manage, to an extent,
interest rate and credit concentration risk. Credit risk is further managed through underwriting policies and procedures and loan monitoring
practices. Interest rate risk is managed using various asset/liability modeling techniques and analyses. The interest rates on most commercial
loans are adjustable with reset intervals of five years or less.
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The majority of the Company s loan portfolio is collateralized, at least in part, by real estate in Lackawanna and Luzerne Counties of
Pennsylvania. Commercial lending activities generally involve a greater degree of credit risk than consumer lending because they typically have
larger balances and are more affected by adverse conditions in the economy. Because payments on commercial loans depend upon the
successful operation and management of the properties and the businesses which operate from within them, repayment of such loans may be
affected by factors outside the borrower s control. Such factors may include adverse conditions in the real estate market, the economy, the
industry or changes in government regulations. As such, commercial loans require more ongoing evaluation and monitoring which occurs with
the Bank s credit administration and outsourced loan review functions.
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The composition of the loan portfolio at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, is summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Amount % Amount %

Commercial and CRE $ 252,936 594 $ 245,480 55.7
Residential real estate 80,119 18.8 98,510 22.3
Consumer 82,860 19.5 85,091 19.3
Real estate construction 9,253 2.2 11,427 2.6
Direct financing leases 427 0.1 444 0.1
Gross loans 425,595 100.0 440,952 100.0
Allowance for loan losses (5,098) (4,745)

Net loans $ 420,497 $ 436,207

Gross loans decreased from $440,952,000, as of December 31, 2008 to $425,595,000 at March 31, 2009. The decline was predominately from
the transfer from the loan and lease portfolio, to the AFS portfolio, and simultaneous sale of $10,838,000 of residential mortgage loans during
the first quarter of 2009. The balance of the decline is mostly from net pay-downs during the first quarter as borrowers sentiment, during this
low-rate environment is to re-finance their existing mortgage and home equity debt into new mortgage loans. Most of the loans that were
refinanced with the Company were sold on a servicing-retained basis. Commercial and CRE loans continue to build due to the efforts and
resulting success of the Company s commercial lending department s endeavor to generate new business.

Allowance for loan losses

Management continually evaluates the credit quality of the Company s loan portfolio and performs a formal review of the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses (the allowance) on a quarterly basis. The allowance reflects management s best estimate of the amount of credit losses
in the loan portfolio. Management s judgment is based on the evaluation of individual loans, past experience, the assessment of current economic
conditions and other relevant factors including the amounts and timing of cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans. Those

estimates may be susceptible to significant change. The provision for loan losses represents the amount necessary to maintain an appropriate
allowance. Loan losses are charged directly against the allowance when loans are deemed to be uncollectible. Recoveries from previously
charged-off loans are added to the allowance when received.

Management applies two primary components during the loan review process to determine proper allowance levels. The two components are a
specific loan loss allocation for loans that are deemed impaired and a general loan loss allocation for those loans not specifically allocated. The
methodology to analyze the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

. identification of specific impaired loans by loan category;

. calculation of specific allowances where required for the impaired loans based on collateral and other
objective and quantifiable evidence;

. determination of homogenous pools by loan category and eliminating the impaired loans;
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. application of historical loss percentages (five-year average) to pools to determine the allowance allocation;
and

. application of qualitative factor adjustment percentages to historical losses for trends or changes in the loan
portfolio.

Allocation of the allowance for different categories of loans is based on the methodology as explained above. A key element of the

methodology to determine the allowance is the Company s credit risk evaluation process, which includes credit risk grading of individual
commercial loans. Commercial loans are assigned credit risk grades based on the Company s assessment of conditions that affect the borrower s
ability to meet its contractual obligations under the loan agreement. That process includes reviewing borrowers current financial information,
historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information and other information specific to each individual borrower. The

changes in allocations in the commercial loan portfolio from period to period are based upon the credit risk grading system and from periodic
reviews of the loan and lease portfolios.

Each quarter, management performs an assessment of the allowance and the provision for loan losses. The Company s Special Assets Committee
meets quarterly and the applicable lenders discuss each relationship under review and reach a consensus on the appropriate estimated loss
amount based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114,
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Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, (SFAS 114). The Special Assets Committee s focus is on ensuring the pertinent facts are
considered and the SFAS 114 reserve amounts are reasonable. The assessment process includes the review of all loans on a non-accruing basis
as well as a review of certain loans to which the lenders or the Company s Credit Administration function have assigned a criticized or classified
risk rating.

Net charge-offs for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, were $73,000, compared to $445,000 in the first quarter of 2008. Consumer loan
charge-offs declined to $60,000 at March 31, 2009 versus $94,000 at March 31, 2008. Commercial loan net charge-offs were $10,000 for the
quarter end March 31, 2009 compared to $320,000 in the same quarter of 2008. Mortgage loans showed net charge-offs of $3,000 in the

March 31, 2009 quarter compared to $32,000 in the like quarter of 2008. For a discussion on the provision for loan losses, see the Provision for
loan losses, located in the results of operations section of management s discussion and analysis contained herein.

Management believes that the current balance in the allowance for loan losses of $5,098,000 is sufficient to withstand the identified potential
credit quality issues that may arise and others unidentified but are inherent to the portfolio. At March 31, 2009, management was unaware of
any potential problem loans that have not been reviewed. Potential problem loans are those where there is known information that leads
management to believe repayment of principal and/or interest is in jeopardy and the loans are currently neither on non-accrual status or past due
90 days or more. However, there could be certain instances which become identified over the upcoming year that may require additional
charge-offs and/or increases to the allowance. The ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.20% at March 31, 2009 compared to
1.10% at March 31, 2008.

The following tables set forth the activity in the allowance for loan losses and certain key ratios for the period indicated:

As of and for the As of and for the As of and for the
three months ended twelve months ended three months ended
March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 March 31, 2008
Balance at beginning of period $ 4,745,234  $ 4,824,401 $ 4,824,401
Provision charged to operations 425,000 940,000
Charge-offs:
Commercial 17,118 733,214 378,107
Real estate 3,157 44,800 31,871
Consumer 63,728 350,856 109,127
Total 84,003 1,128,870 519,105
Recoveries:
Commercial 7,587 79,253 58,463
Real estate 97 30
Consumer 3,823 30,353 15,135
Total 11,410 109,703 73,628
Net charge-offs 72,593 1,019,167 445,477
Balance at end of period $ 5,097,641 $ 4,745,234  $ 4,378,924
Total loans, end of period $ 426,269,981 $ 441,036,694 $ 399,582,768
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As of and for the As of and for the As of and for the
three months ended twelve months ended three months ended

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 March 31, 2008
Net charge-offs to:
Loans, end of period 0.02% 0.23% 0.11%
Allowance for loan losses 1.42% 21.48% 10.17%
Provision for loan losses 0.17x 1.08x
Allowance for loan losses to:
Total loans 1.20% 1.08% 1.10%
Non-accrual loans 0.70x 1.36x 0.97x
Non-performing loans 0.67x 1.16x 0.91x
Net charge-offs 70.22x 4.66x 9.83x
Loans 30-89 days past due and still accruing $ 3911,373  $ 1,858,481 $ 3,582,873
Loans 90 days past due and accruing $ 341,404 $ 604,140 $ 336,627
Non-accrual loans $ 7,236,780 $ 3,493,169 $ 4,498,424
Allowance for loan losses to loans 90 days or more past
due and accruing 14.93x 7.85x 13.01x

Non-performing assets

The Company defines non-performing assets as accruing loans past due 90 days or more, non-accrual loans, restructured loans, other real estate
owned (ORE) and repossessed assets. As of March 31, 2009, non-performing assets represented 1.56% of total assets compared to 0.84% at
March 31, 2008. The increase was driven by the higher level of non-accruing loans and ORE at March 31, 2009.

In the review of loans for both delinquency and collateral sufficiency, management concluded that there were a number of loans that lacked the
ability to repay in accordance with contractual terms. The decision to place loans or leases on a non-accrual status is made on an individual
basis after considering factors pertaining to each specific loan.

The majority of the non-performing assets for the period are attributed to non-accruing commercial business loans, non-accruing real estate loans
and ORE. Most of the loans are collateralized, thereby mitigating the Company s potential for loss. At March 31, 2009 non-performing loans
were $7,578,000 compared to $4,097,000 at December 31, 2008. During the quarter ended March 31, 2009, the Company was notified by a
customer of a significant adverse business event causing management to place the customer s $3,300,000 loan relationship on non-accrual status.
Management does not expect this will have a material impact on income going forward. Specific action plans for the resolution of each of the
Company s non-performing loans have been developed and are periodically updated as needed. There were no restructured loans or repossessed
assets at March 31, 2009 or at December 31, 2008. ORE at March 31, 2009 consisted of five properties of which one had an agreement to sell
pending. At March 31, 2009, the non-accrual loans aggregated $7,237,000 as compared to $3,493,000 at December 31, 2008. During the
quarter loans totaling approximately $4,269,000 were placed in non-accrual status. These were partially offset by reductions or payoffs of
$258,000, charge-offs of $66,000, $132,000 of transfers to ORE and $69,000 of loans that returned to performing status. Loans past due 90 days
or more and accruing totaled $341,000 at March 31, 2009 and were $604,000, at December 31, 2008. The percentage of non-performing assets
to total assets was 1.56% at March 31, 2009, an increase from 0.96% at December 31, 2008, primarily due to the aforementioned non-accrual
loans increase. Non-performing loans to net loans were 1.80% at March 31, 2009, and 0.94% at December 31, 2008. The 30-89 day past due
loans at March 31, 2009 were $3,911,000 and $1,858,000 at December 31, 2008.
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The following table sets forth non-performing assets data as of the period indicated:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 March 31, 2008

Loans past due 90 days or more and accruing $ 341,404 $ 604,140 $ 336,627
Non-accrual loans 7,236,780 3,493,169 4,498,424
Total non-performing loans 7,578,184 4,097,309 4,835,051
Other real estate owned 1,236,716 1,450,507 167,036
Total non-performinlg assets $ 8,814,900 $ 5,547,816 $ 5,002,087
Net loans including AFS $ 421,172,340  $ 436,291,460 $ 395,203,844
Total assets $ 566,785,573 $ 575,718,997 $ 593,876,533
Non-accrual loans to net loans 1.72% 0.80% 1.14%
Non-performing assets to net loans, foreclosed real estate

and repossessed assets 2.09% 1.27% 1.27%
Non-performing assets to total assets 1.56% 0.96% 0.84%
Non-performing loans to net loans 1.80% 0.94% 1.22%

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale, consisting of ORE, was $1,237,000 at March 31, 2009 consisting of five properties, one of which was under an
agreement to be sold. The remaining four properties are listed for sale with a realtor.

At March 31, 2009, foreclosed assets held-for-sale was comprised of two ORE properties amounting to $1,429,000, which have been listed for
sale with a local realtor.

Other assets

An increase in the Company s deferred tax asset, due to further decline in the fair value its securities portfolio, and pending securities purchases
caused other assets to increase $3,779,000, or 42%, during the first three months of 2009.

Deposits

The Bank is a community-based commercial financial institution, member FDIC, which offers a variety of deposit accounts with varying ranges
of interest rates and terms. Deposit products include savings accounts, interest-bearing checking (NOW), money market, non-interest bearing
checking (DDAs) and certificates of deposit accounts. Certificates of deposit accounts, or CDs, are deposits with stated maturities ranging from
seven days to ten years. The flow of deposits is significantly influenced by general economic conditions, changes in prevailing interest rates,
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pricing and competition. Most of the Company s deposits are obtained from the communities surrounding its 12 branch offices and are insured
by the FDIC up to the full extent permitted by law. The Bank attempts to attract and retain deposit customers via sales and marketing efforts,
new products, quality service, competitive rates and maintaining long-standing customer relationships. To determine deposit product interest
rates, the Company considers local competition, market yields and the rates charged for alternative sources of funding such as borrowings.
Though we continue to experience intense competition for deposits, our rate-setting strategy includes consideration of liquidity needs, balance
sheet structure and cost effective strategies that are mindful of the current interest rate environment.

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company began to use the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) in order to obtain
FDIC insurance protection for customers who have large deposits that at times exceed the FDIC maximum amount of $250,000. In the CDARS
program, deposits are sold at varying terms and interest rates, are originated in our own market place and are placed with other financial
institutions that are members in the CDARS network. By placing these deposits in other participating institutions, the deposits of our customers
are fully insured by the FDIC. In return for deposits we place with network institutions, we can receive from network institutions deposits that
are approximately equal in amount of what was placed for our customers. Deposits that we receive, or reciprocal deposits, from other
institutions are considered brokered deposits. As of March 31, 2009, CDARS represented $5,826,000, or 1%, of total deposits.
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Compared to December 31, 2008 total deposits grew $30,842,000, or 7%, during the three months of March 31, 2009. The growth in total
deposits was due to increases in NOW, money market and savings accounts $20,751,000, or 41%, $10,202,000, or 11%, and $2,446,000, or 6%,
respectively, partially offset by lower CD balances. The opening of the West Scranton branch during the third quarter of 2008, related
bank-wide money market promotions and seasonal activity with municipal customers all contributed to growth in deposits during the first
quarter of 2009.

The following table represents the components of deposits as of the date indicated (dollars in thousands):

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Amount % Amount %

Money market $ 106,939,788 230 $ 96,738,006 22.3
NOW 70,875,172 15.3 50,123,744 11.6
Savings and club 43,772,986 9.4 41,326,616 9.5
Certificates of deposit 167,443,473 36.1 173,680,915 40.1
CDARS 5,825,875 1.3

Total interest-bearing 394,857,294 85.1 361,869,281 83.5
Non-interest-bearing 69,296,833 14.9 71,442,651 16.5
Total deposits $ 464,154,127 100.0 $ 433,311,932 100.0

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more aggregated $66,565,000 and $74,250,000 at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.
Certificates of deposit of $250,000 or more aggregated $25,122,000 and $35,108,000 at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Approximately 63% of total CDs are scheduled to mature in 2009. Renewing CDs may re-price to market rates depending on the direction of
interest rate movements, the shape of the yield curve, competition, the rate profile of the maturing accounts and depositor preference for
alternative products. To help reduce the financial impact of the unpredictable and highly volatile interest rate environment, management will
deploy prudent strategies that will diversify the deposit mix across the entire spectrum of products offered. Although we continue to experience
intense competition for deposits, we have not adjusted rates above market levels as we consider cost effective strategies as well as relationship
retention and development when setting interest rates on deposit accounts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are used as a complement to deposit generation as an alternative funding source whereby the Bank will borrow under customer
repurchase agreements in the local market, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB) and other correspondent banks
for asset growth and liquidity needs. Repurchase agreements are non-insured interest-bearing liabilities that have a security interest in qualified
investment securities of the Bank and are offered in both sweep and fixed-term products. A sweep account is designed to ensure that, on a daily
basis, an attached DDA is adequately funded and excess DDA funds are transferred, or swept, into an overnight interest-bearing repurchase
agreement account. The balance in customer repurchase agreement accounts can fluctuate daily because the daily sweep product is dependent
on the level of available funds in depositor accounts. In addition, short-term borrowings may include overnight balances which the Bank may
require to fund daily liquidity needs. Overnight balances and repurchase agreements are components of short-term borrowings and FHLB
advances are components of long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table represents the components of borrowings as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Amount % Amount %
Overnight borrowings $ $ 25,668 28.5
Repurchase agreements 10,131 19.2 11,412 12.6
Demand note, U.S. Treasury 611 1.2 1,050 1.2
FHLB advances 42,000 79.6 52,000 57.7
Total borrowings $ 52,742 100.0 $ 90,130 100.0
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Borrowings have decreased $37,388,000, or 41%, during the three months ended March 31, 2009. Overnight borrowings and FHLB advances
have declined as a result of the Company s balance sheet de-leveraging and deposit generation. The reduction in repurchase agreements was
caused by a combination of pricing and the volatile nature of the sweep product.

Accrued interest pavable and other liabilities

The $1,111,000, or 34% increase is from securities purchase commitments that settled in April 2009.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Management of interest rate risk and market risk analysis

The Company is subject to the interest rate risks inherent in its lending, investing and financing activities. Fluctuations of interest rates will
impact interest income and interest expense along with affecting market values of all interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities,
except for those assets or liabilities with a short term remaining to maturity. Interest rate risk management is an integral part of the asset/liability
management process. The Company has instituted certain procedures and policy guidelines to manage the interest rate risk position. Those
internal policies enable the Company to react to changes in market rates to protect net interest income from significant fluctuations. The primary
objective in managing interest rate risk is to minimize the adverse impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income along with creating
an asset/liability structure that maximizes earnings.

Asset/Liability Management. One major objective of the Company when managing the rate sensitivity of its assets and
liabilities is to stabilize net interest income. The management of and authority to assume interest rate risk is the
responsibility of the Company s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO), which is comprised of senior management and
members of the board of directors. ALCO meets quarterly to monitor the relationship of interest sensitive assets to
interest sensitive liabilities. The process to review interest rate risk is a regular part of managing the Company.
Consistent policies and practices of measuring and reporting interest rate risk exposure, particularly regarding the
treatment of non-contractual assets and liabilities, are in effect. In addition, there is an annual process to review the
interest rate risk policy with the board of directors which includes limits on the impact to earnings from shifts in
interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Measurement. Interest rate risk is monitored through the use of three complementary measures: static gap
analysis, earnings at risk simulation and economic value at risk simulation. While each of the interest rate risk
measurements has limitations, taken together they represent a reasonably comprehensive view of the magnitude of
interest rate risk in the Company and the distribution of risk along the yield curve, the level of risk through time and
the amount of exposure to changes in certain interest rate relationships.
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Static Gap. The ratio between assets and liabilities re-pricing in specific time intervals is referred to as an interest rate
sensitivity gap. Interest rate sensitivity gaps can be managed to take advantage of the slope of the yield curve as well
as forecasted changes in the level of interest rate changes.

To manage this interest rate sensitivity gap position, an asset/liability model commonly known as cumulative gap analysis is used to monitor the
difference in the volume of the Company s interest sensitive assets and liabilities that mature or re-price within given time intervals. A positive
gap (asset sensitive) indicates that more assets will mature or re-price during a given period compared to liabilities, while a negative gap
(liability sensitive) has the opposite effect. The Company employs computerized net interest income simulation modeling to assist in
quantifying interest rate risk exposure. This process measures and quantifies the impact on net interest income through varying interest rate
changes and balance sheet compositions. The use of this model assists the ALCO to gauge the effects of the interest rate changes on
interest-sensitive assets and liabilities in order to determine what impact these rate changes will have upon the net interest spread. At March 31,
2009 the Bank maintained a one-year cumulative gap of positive $30.5 million, or 5.4%, of total assets. The effect of this positive gap position
provided a mismatch of assets and liabilities which may expose the Bank to interest rate risk during periods of falling interest rates. Conversely,
in an increasing interest rate environment, net interest income could be positively impacted because more assets than liabilities would re-price
upward during the one-year period.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis discussed above and presented in the next table. Although certain assets and
liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of re-pricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. The
interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other
types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages, have features
which restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. In the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment
and early withdrawal levels may deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. The ability of many borrowers to service
their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.
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The following table illustrates the Company s interest sensitivity gap position at March 31, 2009 (dollars in thousands):

Three months Three to One to Over
or less twelve months three years three years Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,350 $ $ $ 9,451 $ 20,801
Investment securities (1)(2) 59,338 7,973 8,324 8,096 83,731
Loans (2) 114,868 68,114 107,571 130,619 421,172
Fixed and other assets 8,887 32,195 41,082
Total assets $ 185,556 $ 84,974 $ 115,895 $ 180,361 $ 566,786
Total cumulative assets $ 185,556 $ 270,530 $ 386,425 $ 566,786
Non-interest bearing transaction deposits
3 $ $ 6,929 $ 19,057 $ 43311 $ 69,297
Interest-bearing transaction deposits (3) 78,703 54,316 88,568 221,587
Time deposits 25,223 118,468 22,724 6,855 173,270
Repurchase agreements 10,131 10,131
Short-term borrowings 611 611
Long-term debt 21,000 21,000 42,000
Other liabilities 4,428 4,428
Total liabilities $ 114,668 $ 125,397 $ 117,097 $ 164,162 $ 521,324
Total cumulative liabilities $ 114,668 $ 240,065 $ 357,162 $ 521,324
Interest sensitivity gap $ 70,888 % (40,423) $ (1,202) $ 16,199
Cumulative gap $ 70,888 $ 30,465 $ 29,263 $ 45,462
Cumulative gap to total assets 12.51% 5.38% 5.16% 8.02%

(1) Includes FHLB stock and the net unrealized gains/losses on securities AFS.

(2) Investments and loans are included in the earlier of the period in which interest rates were next scheduled to adjust
or the period in which they are due. In addition, loans are included in the periods in which they are scheduled to be
repaid based on scheduled amortization. For amortizing loans and mortgage-backed securities, annual prepayment
rates are assumed reflecting historical experience as well as management s knowledge and experience of its loan
products.

(3) The Bank s demand and savings accounts are generally subject to immediate withdrawal. However, management
considers a certain amount of such accounts to be core accounts having significantly longer effective maturities based
on the retention experiences of such deposits in changing interest rate environments. The effective maturities
presented are the recommended maturity distribution limits for non-maturing deposits based on historical deposit
studies.
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Earnings at Risk and Economic Value at Risk Simulations. The Company recognizes that more sophisticated tools exist for
measuring the interest rate risk in the balance sheet that extend beyond static re-pricing gap analysis. Although it will
continue to measure its re-pricing gap position, the Company utilizes additional modeling for identifying and

measuring the interest rate risk in the overall balance sheet. The ALCO is responsible for focusing on earnings at risk
and economic value at risk , and how both relate to the risk-based capital position when analyzing the interest rate risk.

Earnings at Risk. Barnings at risk simulation measures the change in net interest income and net income should interest
rates rise and fall. The simulation recognizes that not all assets and liabilities re-price one-for-one with market rates
(e.g., savings rate). The ALCO looks at earnings at risk to determine income changes from a base case scenario under
an increase and decrease of 200 basis points in interest rate simulation models.

Economic Value at Risk. Earnings at risk simulation measures the short-term risk in the balance sheet. Economic value
(or portfolio equity) at risk measures the long-term risk by finding the net present value of the future cash flows from
the Company s existing assets and liabilities. The ALCO examines this ratio quarterly utilizing an increase and
decrease of 200 basis points in interest rate simulation models. The ALCO recognizes that, in some instances, this
ratio may contradict the earnings at risk ratio.

The following table illustrates the simulated impact of 200 basis points upward or downward movement in interest rates on net interest income,
net income and the change in the economic value (portfolio equity). This analysis assumes that interest-earning
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asset and interest-bearing liability levels at March 31, 2009 remain constant. The impact of the rate movements was developed by simulating the
effect of rates changing over a twelve-month period from the March 31, 2009 levels:

Rates +200 Rates -200
Earnings at risk:
Percent change in:
Net interest income 2.4% 3.8%
Net income 12.9 17.8
Economic value at risk:
Percent change in:
Economic value of equity (27.8) 4.5)
Economic value of equity asa percent of book assets 2.2) 0.4)

Economic value has the most meaning when viewed within the context of risk-based capital. Therefore, the economic value may normally
change beyond the Company s policy guideline for a short period of time as long as the risk-based capital ratio (after adjusting for the excess
equity exposure) is greater than 10%. At March 31, 2009, the Company s risk-based capital ratio was 11.6%.

The table below summarizes estimated changes in net interest income over a twelve-month period beginning April 1, 2009 under alternate
interest rate scenarios using the income simulation model described above (dollars in thousands):

Net interest $ %o
Change in interest rates income variance variance
4200 basis points $ 19,515 § 458 2.4%
+100 basis points 19,439 382 2.0
Flat rate 19,057
-100 basis points 19,500 443 2.3
-200 basis points 19,777 720 3.8

Simulation models require assumptions about certain categories of assets and liabilities. The models schedule existing assets and liabilities by
their contractual maturity, estimated likely call date or earliest re-pricing opportunity. Mortgage-backed securities and amortizing loans are
scheduled based on their anticipated cash flow including estimated prepayments. For investment securities, the Bank uses a third-party service
to provide cash flow estimates in the various rate environments. Savings, money market and NOW accounts do not have a stated maturity or
re-pricing term and can be withdrawn or re-priced at any time. This may impact the margin if more expensive alternative sources of deposits are
required to fund loans or deposit runoff. Management projects the re-pricing characteristics of these accounts based on historical performance
and assumptions that it believes reflect their rate sensitivity. The model reinvests all maturities, repayments and prepayments for each type of
asset or liability into the same product for a new like term at current product interest rates provided by management. As a result, the mix of
interest-earning assets and interest bearing-liabilities is held constant.

Derivative Financial Instruments. As part of the Bank s overall interest rate risk strategy, the Company has adopted a policy
whereby the Company may periodically use derivative instruments to minimize significant fluctuations in earnings
caused by interest rate volatility. This interest rate risk management strategy entails the use of interest rate floors,

caps and swaps. In October 2006, the Bank entered into an interest rate floor derivative agreement on $20,000,000
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notional value of its prime-based loan portfolio. The purpose of the hedge is to help protect the Bank s interest income
in the event interest rates decline below a pre-determined contractual interest rate. The strategy is reflected in the
scenarios for earnings and economic value at risk and the net interest income in the two immediately preceding

tables. For a further discussion on the Bank s derivative contract, see Note No. 4, Derivative instruments, contained
within the notes to consolidated financial statements in Part I, Item 1.

Liquidity

Liquidity management ensures that adequate funds will be available to meet loan and investment commitments, deposit withdrawals and
maturities and normal operating requirements of the Bank. Current sources of liquidity are cash and cash
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equivalents, asset maturities, calls and principal repayments, loans and investments AFS, growth of core deposits, growth of repurchase
agreements, increases in other borrowed funds from correspondent banks and issuance of capital stock. Although regularly scheduled
investment and loan payments are dependable sources of daily funds, the sales of both loans and investments AFS, deposit activity and
investment and loan prepayments are significantly influenced by general economic conditions and the level of interest rates. During declining
interest rate environments, prepayments from interest-sensitive assets tend to accelerate and provide significant liquidity which can be used to
invest in other interest-earning assets but at lower market rates. Conversely, in a period of rising interest rates, prepayment from
interest-sensitive assets tend to decelerate causing cash flow from mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities portfolio to decrease. Deposit
inflow may accelerate and be invested at higher market interest rates. The Company closely monitors activity in the capital markets and takes
appropriate action to ensure that the liquidity levels are adequate for funding, investing and operating activities.

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company generated approximately $8.0 million of cash. During this period, the Company s
operations provided approximately $11.3 million primarily from the sales of mortgages AFS net of originations and the investing activities
provided approximately $3.6 million from pay-downs of loans and from the sale of foreclosed properties held-for-sale. Partially offsetting these
cash generators was a use of $6.9 million in financing activities, mostly from the pay-down of total borrowings net of deposit growth. As of
March 31, 2009, the Company maintained $20,801,000 in cash and cash equivalents, $78,068,000 of investments AFS and $675,000 of loans
AFS. In addition, as of March 31, 2009 the Company had approximately $170,259,000 available to borrow from the FHLB and $30,000,000
available from other correspondent banks. This combined total of $299,803,000 represented 53% of total assets at March 31, 20009.
Management believes this level of liquidity to be strong and adequate to support current operations.

In October 2008, the FDIC announced the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLGP) to strengthen confidence and encourage liquidity in
the banking system. Among other things, this new program will provide full deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing deposit
transaction accounts in FDIC-insured institutions regardless of the dollar amount. To protect its depositors, the Company is participating in the
TLGP. Under the TLGP, all depositors who hold funds in non-interest bearing accounts, or interest-bearing accounts with an interest rate of
0.50% or less, including the Lawyers Trust Accounts, will have a temporary unlimited guarantee from the FDIC until December 31, 2009. The
coverage of the TLGP is in addition to and separate from coverage available under the FDIC s general deposit insurance rules, which insures
accounts up to $250,000 until the end of 2009 unless extended.

Capital

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, shareholders equity decreased $3,499,000, or 7%, due principally from increased unrealized net
losses in the securities AFS portfolio and the declaration of cash dividends. Conversely, shareholders equity was enhanced by current year
earnings and by stock issued from the Company s Employee Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plans.

At March 31, 2009, the Company reported a net unrealized loss of $12,673,000, net of tax effect, from the securities AFS portfolio compared to

a net unrealized loss of $8,831,000 as of December 31, 2008. The increase in the unrealized loss during the first quarter of 2009 was caused by

the prolonged economic downturn which has created uncertainty and in certain circumstances illiquidity in the financial and capital markets and
has had a sizable negative impact on the fair value estimates for securities in banks investment portfolios. Management believes these changes
are due mainly to liquidity problems in the financial markets and to a lesser extent the deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuers. For a
further discussion on the fair value determination of the Company s investment portfolio, see Investments under the caption Comparison of
financial condition at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 of Part 1, Item 2, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations; and Note 5, Fair Value Measurements, contained within the notes to the consolidated financial statements, and
incorporated by reference in Part I, Item 1.
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During the second quarter of 2008, the Company s Board of Directors announced its intent to initiate a capital stock repurchase program covering
up to 50,000 shares of its outstanding capital stock. The repurchased shares would become treasury stock and could be available for issuance
under the Company s various stock-based compensation, employee stock purchase and dividend reinvestment (DRP) plans and for general
corporate purposes. The repurchases will be made from time-to-time in open-market transactions, subject to availability, pursuant to safe harbor
rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Management has temporarily suspended repurchase plan activity as a prudent means, in
light of the current economic pressures on banking, to preserve and grow the Company s capital base. Currently, since the program s inception,
the Company has reacquired 4,798 shares, net of reissued shares to participants in the Company s DRP, at a weighted-average cost of $27.66 per
share. For a further discussion on this program, see Item 2, Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds included in Part II,
Other Information, below.
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In October 2008, the U.S. Department of Treasury (Treasury), the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (FRB) and the FDIC
issued a joint statement announcing a voluntary capital purchase program where the Treasury will purchase senior preferred stock of certain
financial institutions. The Treasury had allocated $250 billion under the Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) created under the Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008 (ESSA) to purchase senior preferred stock in banks through the Capital Purchase Program. The Company received
preliminary approval from the U.S. Treasury Department to participate in the TARP; however because of the Company s strong capital position
as of December 31, 2008, the Company has decided not to participate as the effect of accepting the program was determined to not be in the best
interest of the Company s shareholders.

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company s and the Bank s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.
The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings and other
factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Under these guidelines, assets and certain off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each with appropriate weights. The
resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and certain off-balance sheet items. The appropriate
risk-weighting, pursuant to regulatory guidelines, required an increase in the risk-weighting of securities that were recently rated below
investment grade, thus significantly inflating the total risk-weighted assets. Compared to the previous quarter, the total capital and Tier I capital
ratios were reduced by the increase in risk-weighted assets. The guidelines require all banks and bank holding companies to maintain a
minimum ratio of total risk-based capital to total risk-weighted assets (Total Risk Adjusted Capital) of 8%, including Tier I capital to total
risk-weighted assets (Tier I Capital) of 4% and Tier I capital to average total assets (Leverage Ratio) of at least 4%. As of March 31, 2009, the
Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject.

The following table depicts the capital amounts and ratios of the Company and the Bank as of March 31, 2009:

To be well capitalized
For capital under prompt corrective

Actual adequacy purposes action provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 62,749,208 11.6% > $ 43,364,576 > 8.0% N/A N/A
Bank $ 62,328,705 11.5% > $ 43,355,088 > 8.0% = $ 54,193,860 > 10.0%
Tier I capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 57,610,480 10.6% > $ 21,682,288 > 4.0% N/A N/A
Bank $ 57,230,944 10.6% > $ 21,677,544 > 4.0% > $ 32,516,316 > 6.0%
Tier I capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 57,610,480 10.1% > $ 22,885,472 > 4.0% N/A N/A
Bank $ 57,230,944 10.0% > $ 22,869,891 > 4.0% > $ 28,587,364 > 5.0%

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures

69



Edgar Filing: FIDELITY D & D BANCORP INC - Form 10-Q

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, an evaluation was carried out by the Company s management, with
the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company s disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports the Company files or furnishes under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and regulations, and are operating in an effective manner. The Company
made no significant changes in its internal controls over financial reporting or in other factors that materially affected,

or are reasonably likely to materially affect, these controls during the last fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2009.
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PART 1I - Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The nature of the Company s business generates some litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary course of business. However, in the
opinion of the Company, after consultation with legal counsel, no legal proceedings are pending, which, if determined adversely to the Company
or the Bank, would have a material effect on the Company s undivided profits or financial condition. No legal proceedings are pending other
than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of the Company and the Bank. In addition, to management s knowledge, no
governmental authorities have initiated or contemplated any material legal actions against the Company or the Bank.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Management of the Company does not believe there have been any material changes in risk factors that were disclosed in the Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2009.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

() The following table summarizes the activity in the Company s stock repurchase program during the first quarter of
2009:

(a) (b) © @
Total number of
shares (or units) Maximum number of
shares (or units) that
Total Number purchased as part as may
yet be purchased under
of shares (or units) Average price paid publicly announced plans the
Period purchased per share (or unit) or programs plans or programs
January 1, 2009 to
January 31, 2009 $ 35,000
February 1, 2009 to
February 28, 2009 2,500 22.60 2,500 32,500
March 1, 2009 to
March 31, 2009 32,500
Total 2,500 $ 22.60 2,500 32,500

In the second quarter of 2008 the Company s Board of Directors approved and publicly announced its intent to initiate a capital stock repurchase
program covering up to 50,000 shares, or approximately 2.4% of its outstanding capital stock as of May 31, 2008. The Company has not made
any purchases of its shares of capital that has not been publicly announced. Neither an expiration date nor a maximum dollar amount has been
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fixed to the program. The repurchases will be made from time-to-time in open-market transactions, subject to availability. The repurchased
shares would become treasury stock and could be available for issuance under the Company s various stock-based compensation, employee stock
purchase and dividend reinvestment plans and for general corporate purposes. No repurchase program has expired or has been subject to a
determination to terminate during the period covered by the above table. During the first quarter of 2009, 9,957 shares were reissued to
participants in the Company s dividend reinvestment plan at a re-issue price of $20.32 per share.

Item 3. Default Upon Senior Securities

None

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None

Item 5. Other Information

None

Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference as a part of this Form 10-Q:
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3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Annex B of the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus included in Registrant s Amendment 4 to its Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4,
filed with the SEC on April 6, 2000.

3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Registrant s Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on November 21, 2007.

*10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on
November 3, 1999.

#10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3,
1999.

*10.3 Registrant s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant s Registration
Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2000 and as amended by Pre-Effective
Amendment No. 1 on October 11, 2000, by Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on May 30, 2001, by Post-Effective
Amendment No. 2 on July 7, 2005 and by Registration Statement No. 333-152806 on Form S-3 filed on August 6,
2008.

*10.4 Registrant s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Registrant s
Registration Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

*10.5 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007.

*10.6 Registrant s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant s Registration Statement
No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

*10.7 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Registrant s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007.
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*10.8 Registrant s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant s Registration
Statement No. 333-113339 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on March 5, 2004.

*10.9 Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F. Marranca, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and
Discount Bank, dated July 30, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004.

*10.10 Amendment to the Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F. Marranca, Registrant and The Fidelity
Deposit and Discount Bank, dated November 4, 2005. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 9, 2005.

*10.11 Change of Control Agreements with Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated
March 21, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 27, 2006.

*10.12 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank and Steven C. Ackmann, dated July 11, 2007. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 13, 2007.

*10.13 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and Timothy
P. O Brien, dated January 3, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008.

*]0.14 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and Daniel J.
Santaniello, dated February 28, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2008.
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11 Statement regarding computation of earnings per share. Included herein in Note No. 2, Earnings per
share, contained within the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, and incorporated herein by
reference.

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer, filed herewith.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer, filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 5, 2009

Date: May 5, 2009

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

/s/ Steven C. Ackmann
Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Annex B of the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus included in Registrant s Amendment 4 to its Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on
Form S-4, filed with the SEC on April 6, 2000.

3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Registrant s
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2007.

10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on
Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999.

10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the
SEC on November 3, 1999.

10.3 Registrant s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant s
Registration Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2000 and as
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